
 

HUMBOLDT GENERAL HOSPITAL 

 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 

 

TUESDAY 

OCTOBER 26, 2021 

5:30 P.M. 

 

 

SARAH WINNEMUCCA CONFERENCE ROOM 



HUMBOLDT GENERAL HOSPITAL 
118 EAST HASKELL STREET 

WINNEMUCCA, NEVADA  89445 
 
 

 
DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING AGENDA 

 

MEETING DATE: Tuesday October 26, 2021 
MEETING TIME: 5:30 pm 
MEETING PLACE: Sarah Winnemucca Conference Room 
 Humboldt General Hospital 
 118 E Haskell St, Winnemucca, Nevada 
PLACES POSTED: in Winnemucca, Nevada at: 
 Humboldt General Hospital, 118 E Haskell Street 
 Humboldt County Courthouse, 50 W Fifth Street 
 Winnemucca City Hall, 90 W Fourth Street 
 Humboldt County Library, 85 E Fifth Street 
 United States Post Office, 850 Hanson Street 
 www.hghospital.org https://notice.nv.gov 
PERSON POSTING: Alicia Wogan 
 

MEETING ATTENDANCE MAY BE  
VIA TELECONFERENCE OR VIDEOCONFERENCE OR IN-PERSON 

THE ATTENDANCE FOR MEMBERS OF THE GENERAL PUBLIC AT THE  
PHYSICAL LOCATION MAY BE LIMITED DUE TO DISTANCING REQUIREMENTS 

THE TELECONFERENCE AND VIDEOCONFERENCE ACCESS INSTRUCTIONS APPEAR BELOW 
 

Teleconference:  Dial 1-646-749-3122 - Access Code 368-086-437 

Videoconference: https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/368086437 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
B. PUBLIC COMMENT 

(This agenda item is designated to give the general public the opportunity to address the Hospital 
Board. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this section until it is placed on an 
agenda for action. Public comment is generally limited to three (3) minutes per person.) 

 
C. MEDICAL STAFF-HOSPITAL DEPARTMENT REPORTS  
 (These agenda items are designated to give the opportunity to report and update the Hospital Board 

on each group or department listed. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this section 
until it is placed on an agenda for action.) 
1. Medical Staff report – Chief of Staff 

a) COVID update 
2. MedX report – Bill Hammargren 
3. Administration report  

a) EMS update – Andrew Loveless   
b) Harmony Manor update – Bertha Higbee 
c) Interim CEO report   

 
D. CONSENT AGENDA 

(The Board is expected to review, discuss and take action on this agenda item. The items may be 
approved in a single motion; however, upon Board member request, any consent item may be 
moved to the discussion portion of the agenda and other action, including postponement or denial 
of the item, may take place.) 
1. Board meeting minutes for: September 28, 2021.  
2. Medical Staff applications for appointments, reappointments, provisional and temporary 

privileges for:  Graham Hill, DO, Active-Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation; Patrick Osgood, 

Alicia Cramer - Chairman 
Michelle Miller - Secretary 
JoAnn Casalez - Member 
Gene Hunt - Member 
Lewis Trout - Member 
Ken Tipton - Member-Humboldt 
 County Commissioner 



DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING AGENDA 
October 26, 2021 
Page 2 
 

MD, Active-Orthopedics; Kevin Reyes, DO, Active-Psychiatry; Alvaro Galvis, MD, Active-
Pediatrics; James Balodimas, MD, Consulting-Teleradiology; and, Merleen Grover, APRN-
CNM, Allied Health Professionals-Midwifery.  
 

E. FINANCIAL REPORTS 
(The Board is expected to review, discuss and take action on this agenda item.) 
1. Financial update 
2. Warrants disbursed - Monthly expenditures   
3. Budget information review 
 

F. BUSINESS ITEMS-OTHER REPORTS  
(The agenda items in this section are for discussion and for possible action. The action may consist 
of approval, disapproval, acceptance, rejection, authorization, adoption, recommendation, review, 
referral to staff, or any other action as appropriate. The items may be heard in any order and at any 
time unless a time is specified; two or more items may be combined for consideration; an item may 
be removed from the agenda; or, discussion relating to an item may be delayed at any time.) 
1. Hospital Administration / request to approve purchase of Mako system with partial knee, total 

knee and total hip applications / CEO-Administration 
2. Hospital Administration-RHC / request to approve purchase of ten Omniaire air filtration 

systems and associated fixtures and equipment for nursing / CEO-Administration  
3. District Administration / request to authorize issuance and advertising of a request for proposals 

to provide hospital district legal services / Board of Trustees 
4. Hospital Administration / ratification of decision to join the Nevada Hospital Association SB329 

litigation / CEO-Administration 
 

G. TRUSTEE COMMENTS-STAFF REPORTS 
(This period is designated for receiving reports, information, updates and proposals from the board 
and/or staff.  No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this section until it is placed on 
an agenda for action.) 

 
H. PUBLIC COMMENT  
 (This agenda item is designated to give the general public an opportunity to address the Hospital 

Board.  No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this section until it is placed on an 
agenda for action.  Public comment is generally limited to three (3) minutes per person.) 

 
Notice: This agenda has been physically posted at the locations noted above and electronically posted at 
http://www.hghospital.org/ and at https://notice.nv.gov/. 

Notice: The meeting may be accessed via: (i) teleconference by dialing 1-646-749-3122 and using access code 368-
086-437; or, (ii) videoconference by entering https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/368086437 in a web browser; or (iii) 
in-person at the scheduled location listed above. 

Notice: Members of the public may make a public comment at the meeting without being physically present by: (i) 
emailing adminoffice@hghospital.org no later than 5:00 p.m. on the business day prior to the day of the meeting and 
messages received will be transcribed or printed for entry into the record and provided to the Board of Trustees for 
review; (i) telephone dialing 1-646-749-3122 and using access code 368-086-437; or, (ii) entering the following link 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/368086437 in a web browser. 

Notice:  The Executive Assistant at the Administration Office located at Humboldt General Hospital, 118 E. Haskell 
Street, Winnemucca, Nevada, telephone number 775-623-5222 extension 1123, is the designated person from whom 
a member of the public may request the supporting material for the meeting. Staff reports and supporting material for 
the meeting are available on the Humboldt General Hospital website at http://www.hghospital.org/ and are available to 
the general public at the same time the materials are provided to the Board of Trustees. 

Notice: By law a public body may receive information from legal counsel regarding potential or existing litigation 
involving a matter over which the public body has supervision, control, jurisdiction, or advisory power and such 
gathering does not constitute a meeting of the public body. 

Notice: Reasonable efforts will be made to assist and accommodate disabled persons. Please contact the 
Administration Office by telephoning 775-623-5222 extension 1123, one (1) business day in advance of the meeting. 

 



 

ACLS – Advanced Cardiac Life Support  BLS – Basic Life Support 

ATLS – Advanced Trauma Life Support  NRP – Neonatal Resuscitation Program 

PALS – Pediatric Advanced Life Support  ALSO – Advanced Life Support in Obstetrics 

 

H U M B O L D T  G E N E R A L  H O S P I T A L  
118 E. Haskell Street ■    Winnemucca, Nevada 89445 

Phone 775.623.5222 ■    Fax 775.623.5904 

 
 

October 26, 2021 

 

Board of Trustees 

Ref: Medical Staff Meeting 

 

The following Medical Staff Appointment, Reappointment, and Provisional privilege files were 

presented to Medical Staff for review and were approved on October 20, 2021: 

 

Provisional: None    

Appointment: 

• Graham Hill, DO   Active-Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation 

• Patrick Osgood, MD   Active-Orthopedics 

• Kevin Reyes, DO   Active-Psychiatry 

Reappointment:  

• Alvaro Galvis, MD   Active-Pediatrics 

• James Balodimas, MD  Consulting-Teleradiology 

• Merleen Grover, APRN-CNM Allied Health Professionals-Midwifery 

 

Below details additional information on each Medical Staff file: 

• Graham Hill, DO earned his Doctor of Osteopathic Medicine in June 2003 from the 

University of New England. Dr. Hill completed his Family Practice internship with Eastern 

Maine Medical Center in 2004. He then went to the University of Utah Hospitals and Clinics to 

complete his Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation residency in 2007. Dr. Hill also completed a 

fellowship in Interventional Spine with Adirondack Interventional Physiatry in 2008. Dr. Hill is 

currently board certified through the American Board of Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation. 

He has been practicing since 2008 at the Intermountain Salt Lake Clinic and has recently joined 

the Elko Spine and Rehabilitation Institute. Dr. Hill will be joining Humboldt General Hospital 

as a provider through this group as part of the visiting physicians. Dr. Hill was granted 

provisional privileges in April 2021 and began providing services at HGH in May 2021.  

• Patrick Osgood, MD earned his Doctor of Medicine from the University of Nevada School of 

Medicine in 1992. Dr. Osgood completed his Surgical internship and Orthopedic residency 

with the State University of New York Health Science from 1992 to 1997. Dr. Osgood is 

currently board certified in General Orthopaedics through the American Board of Orthopaedic 

Surgery and has maintained certification since 1999. Dr. Osgood worked in private practice 

from 1997 to 2016 and then switched to contracted locum tenens work in 2016 to present. Dr. 

Osgood had previously provided coverage in Humboldt General Hospital’s Orthopedic clinic 

from May 2016 to May 2017. He will be joining HGH’s Orthopedic clinic through Synergy. 

Dr. Osgood was granted temporary privileges on March 31, 2021 and was granted provisional 

privileges April 30, 2021. Dr. Osgood began his first scheduled rotation April 12, 2021 and has 

provided coverage monthly since.  

• Kevin Reyes, DO earned his Doctor of Osteopathic Medicine from Western University of 

Health Sciences with the College of Osteopathic Medicine of the Pacific in 2014. He completed 

his residency in General Psychiatry with the University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine 

from June 2014 to June 2017. Dr. Reyes then went on to complete a fellowship in Child and 



 

ACLS – Advanced Cardiac Life Support  BLS – Basic Life Support 

ATLS – Advanced Trauma Life Support  NRP – Neonatal Resuscitation Program 

PALS – Pediatric Advanced Life Support  ALSO – Advanced Life Support in Obstetrics 

 

H U M B O L D T  G E N E R A L  H O S P I T A L  
118 E. Haskell Street ■    Winnemucca, Nevada 89445 

Phone 775.623.5222 ■    Fax 775.623.5904 

 
 

Adolescent Psychiatry with the University of Nevada, Las Vegas School of Medicine from July 

2017 to June 2019. Dr. Reyes holds a current board certification in Child and Adolescent 

Psychiatry through the American Board of Psychiatry and Neurology, initially earned in 

September 2019. He also holds a BLS certification. Dr. Reyes has been working as a 

psychiatrist since 2018 in Las Vegas, NV. Dr. Reyes is one of the providers from Nevada 

Mental Health that is joining Humboldt General Hospital to provide services in the Behavioral 

Health Clinic. He started February 5, 2021 with temporary privileges providing services via 

telemedicine. Dr. Reyes was granted provisional privileges April 1, 2021 and will have 

temporary privileges to cover the month of October 2021 while his file is being processed for 

his active appointment.  

• Alvaro Galvis, MD earned his Doctor of Medicine from the University of California, Irvine in 

May 2015. Dr. Galvis completed his Pediatric internship with the University of Nevada, Reno 

from July 2015 to June 2016. He then completed his Pediatric residency with the University of 

Nevada, Las Vegas from July 2016 to September 2018. Dr. Galvis is currently working on a 

fellowship in pediatric infectious disease through the University of California, Irvine that he 

started in July 2019. He holds current certifications in BLS, NRP, and PALS. Dr. Galvis has 

been working as a pediatrician since 2018 in Nevada; mainly working in Las Vegas and 

Winnemucca. Dr. Galvis was initially granted temporary privileges with Humboldt General 

Hospital in February 2019. Dr. Galvis provides pediatric services for HGH and covers PEDS 

call on a monthly basis.  

• James Balodimas, MD earned his Doctor of Medicine from LA State University in 1993. Dr. 

Balodimas completed his transitional year internship and Internal Medicine internship with 

Baptist Health System from 1993 to 1995. He completed his Diagnostic Radiology residency 

with St. Vincent’s Medical Center from 1995 to 1999, where he was chief resident from 1998 

to 1999. Dr. Balodimas them completed a fellowship in Cross Sectional Imaging with the 

University of Arizona from 1999 to 2000. He holds a lifetime certification in Diagnostic 

Radiology through the American Board of Radiology that he earned in 2001. Dr. Balodimas 

has worked as a radiologist since 2000 and has done teleradiology and independent contract 

work as well. Dr. Balodimas is one of the teleradiologists that provides services to Humboldt 

General Hospital through Virtual Radiologic Professionals, LLC (vRAD). He has been working 

with vRAD since 2015 and was initially granted consulting privileges with HGH in October 

2019.  

• Merleen Grover, APRN-CNM earned her Master of Nursing in Nurse Midwifery from the 

University of Cincinnati in 2016. Merleen is currently board certified as a Midwife through the 

American Midwifery Certification Board; she initially earned the certification in August 2016. 

She has 20+ years of experience as a Registered Nurse working in different areas, including 

OB, Med/Surg, and scrub nurse. Merleen has worked as a certified Nurse Midwife since 

October of 2016; most positions were in Northern Nevada. She has worked in Elko, Ely, 

McDermitt, and is currently with Humboldt General Hospital in Winnemucca. Merleen joined 

HGH in May 2019 with temporary privileges. She has been providing services since in the 

Women’s Health Clinic with Dr. Brecheen and Dr. Nainani. 

 

Thank you, 

Jessica Villarreal 

Medical Staff Credentialing Coordinator 



Humboldt General Hospital 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

Date 10/26/2021 

Agenda item:   F-1 

 

  

 

Department: Orthopedics 

Item Description: Mako Robotic Arm Assisted Surgery  

Justification: 

• Purpose: To assist with total hip and total knee surgeries.  Benefit is a better bone cut, faster 

recovery and faster procedure time in the OR 

 

• Other vendors considered/other quotes: No 

 

• Return on Investment: Reviewing pricing of total hip or knee surgeries currently.  Expect 

reduced surgery costs due to efficiencies gained from faster turnaround in OR 

  

• Cost to purchase: $1,475,109 - Seven-year installment plan with possible rebates ($2,500 per 

total hip or knee) depending upon number of surgeries performed – for example first year 

installment due is $172,645.  If 69 total hip/knee surgeries performed during that year, HGH 

would receive a rebate of $172,500 towards the installment payment 

Other Costs: 

• Service/Maintenance Agreement:  $110,000 annually beginning year two 

• Consumables:  Various costs, depends upon surgeries performed and will be billed to patient 

Request:  Purchase of Mako Robotic Arm  

Budgeted:  No 

  

 

































Humboldt General Hospital 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

Date: 10/26/2021 

Agenda item: F2   

 

  

 

Department:  HGH these units can be used throughout the Facility 

Item Description: Air blower with Hepa filters and UV lighting, and related supplies to create negative 

pressure rooms. 

Justification: to provide care for the increased number of patients and protect the staff 

• Purpose: to Provide negative air pressure rooms for treating Covid /flu 

• Other vendors considered/other quotes:  HepaCart (double the cost) 

Cost to purchase: $75,178.70 

Budgeted:   More information at the Board meeting 

Recommendation:   I would recommend the board approve this purchase for the increased surge in 

patients needing isolation rooms and staff safety. 

 






